
City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 2 

City of Belton, Texas 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, March 12, 2024 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Mayor Pro 
Tem John R. Holmes, Sr. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Police Chief 
Larry Berg. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember Dave Covington. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your
name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes.
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.

3. Proclamation: Theatre in Our Schools Month – March 2024

Consent Agenda 

Items 4-9 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 12, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

4. Consider minutes of February 27, 2024, City Council meeting. 
 

5. Consider a resolution appointing election officers for the May 4, 2024, Special 
Election. 

 
6. Consider a resolution nominating the City’s candidate for election to the Board of 

Directors of the Central Texas Water Supply Corporation. 
 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Street Use License Agreement 

with ARIT Investment, LLC to authorize the construction of a subdivision sign in the 
public right-of-way. 

 
8. Consider authorizing a Construction Manager at Risk contract with RM Rodriguez 

Construction for the rehabilitation of the historic Mt. Zion United Methodist Church. 
 
9. Consider implementing recommendations of the City’s Beautification Committee 

regarding funding and associated elements for wall murals in Downtown Belton, 
including a $5,000 cost share for the mural at Cochran, Blair and Potts. 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
10. Consider a financing structure for the future debt issuance by Bell County Water 

Control and Improvement District #1 for water plant expansion and capital 
maintenance enhancements. 
 

11. Consider authorizing an extension to the BEDC development agreement with BCS 
Leasing, LLC and Texcrete Redi Mix through December 31, 2024. 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 
 
If interpreter services for the deaf or hearing impaired are required, please contact the City Clerk at (254) 
933-5817 at least 48 hours in advance. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, March 12, 2024 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Mayor Pro 
Tem John R. Holmes, Sr. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Police Chief 
Larry Berg. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember Dave Covington. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

 
3. Proclamation: Theatre in Our Schools Month – March 2024 
 

Members of Belton High School’s Theatre Troupe will be present to receive the 
proclamation. 

 
 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 12, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 4-9 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider minutes of February 27, 2024, City Council meeting. 
 

A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 
 

5. Consider a resolution appointing election officers for the May 4, 2024, Special 
Election. 

 
See Staff Report from City Clerk Amy Casey. Recommend adoption of the resolution 
appointing election officers for the May Special Election. 

 
6. Consider a resolution nominating the City’s candidate for election to the 

Board of Directors of the Central Texas Water Supply Corporation. 
 

See Staff Report from City Clerk Amy Casey. Recommend nomination of Interim 
Director of Public Works Scott Hodde as the City’s candidate for election to the 
CTWSC Board of Directors.  

 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Street Use License 

Agreement with ARIT Investment, LLC to authorize the construction of two 
subdivision entrance signs in the public right-of-way on Laila Lane and 
Skyview Drive. 

 
See Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. Recommend approval of the Street Use 
License Agreement with ARIT Investments as presented. 

 
8. Consider authorizing a Construction Manager at Risk contract with RM 

Rodriguez Construction for the rehabilitation of the historic Mt. Zion United 
Methodist Church. 

 
See Staff Report from Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Jo-Ell Guzman.  
Recommend authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for pre-construction 
services with RM Rodriguez Construction. A Guaranteed Maximum Price contract 
for the rehabilitation work at Mt. Zion United Methodist Church will be presented to 
Council at a future date. 

 
9. Consider implementing recommendations of the City’s Beautification 

Committee regarding funding and associated elements for wall murals in 
Downtown Belton, including a $5,000 cost share for the mural at Cochran, 
Blair and Potts. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 12, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend approval of the funding 
and associated elements including the cost share with Cochran, Blair and Potts. 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
10. Consider a financing structure for the future debt issuance by Bell County 

Water Control and Improvement District #1 for water plant expansion and 
capital maintenance enhancements. 
 
See Staff Report from Director of Finance Mike Rodgers. Recommend approval of 
the 25-year level debt structure. 
 

11. Consider authorizing an extension to the BEDC development agreement with 
BCS Leasing, LLC and Texcrete Redi Mix through December 31, 2024. 
 
See the Staff Report from BEDC Executive Director Cynthia Hernandez. 
Recommend approval of the extension to the development agreement with BCS 
Leasing, LLC and Texcrete Redi Mix. 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 
 
If interpreter services for the deaf or hearing impaired are required, please contact the City Clerk at (254) 
933-5817 at least 48 hours in advance. 



WHEREAS, “All the world’s a stage” – these five words that were used to start the speech in As You 
Like It by the treasured playwright William Shakespeare have been spoken in front of 
audiences an untold number of times; and 

 
WHEREAS,  theatre allows us to sit in our sorrow, erupt into uncontrollable giggles, examine our 

ethos, dive into our moral truths, punish our hearts with pathos, and dazzle our senses 
with the lights, the drama, the pageantry; and 

 
WHEREAS, theatre is an art form for all seasons and all moods, and when school children 

experience theatre it benefits them in many ways; and 
 
WHEREAS,  theatre education enriches the lives of countless students in our schools and allows 

them to discover and develop their individuality, improve their communication skills, 
increase collaboration, build their self-esteem, and unlock their potential; and 

 
WHEREAS,  to recognize theatre in schools this month is to celebrate the teachers, students and 

supporting cast of parents in Belton who are growing up a new generation of 
performers, backstage role-players and audiences; and 

 
WHEREAS,  students involved in theatre education often show higher academic achievement, 

reading comprehension and school attendance, and participation in theatre can also 
help children with learning disabilities. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, I, John R. Holmes, Sr., by virtue of the power and authority vested in me as 

Mayor Pro Tem of the City of Belton do hereby declare the month of March, 2024, as 
 

“THEATRE IN OUR SCHOOLS MONTH” 
 

in the City of Belton, and I encourage our citizens to support local theatre by attending 
one of the phenomenal productions put on by our talented students.  
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand, 
and have caused the Official Seal of the City of Belton, 
Texas, to be affixed this the 12th day of March, 2024. 

 
 
__________________________________________ 
John R. Holmes, Sr., Mayor Pro Tem 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room of the Harris 
Community Center. Members present included Mayor David K. Leigh, Mayor Pro Tem 
John R. Holmes, Sr., Councilmembers Wayne Carpenter (via Zoom), Craig Pearson, 
Daniel Bucher, Stephanie O’Banion and Dave Covington. Staff present included Sam 
Listi, Matt Bates, Larry Berg, John Messer, Amy Casey, Mike Rodgers, Chris Brown, 
Jon Fontenot, Paul Romer, Bob van Til, Tina Moore, Cynthia Hernandez, Daniel 
Aguirre, Scott Hodde, James Grant, Megan Odiorne, Charlotte Walker, Judy Garrett 
and Jo-Ell Guzman. 
  
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember Dave Covington. 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by CVB and Retail Coordinator 
Judy Garrett. The Invocation was given by Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor David K. Leigh called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 
 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 2:22) 

 
There were no public comments.  
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. (Audio 2:49) 
 
3. Consider the minutes of the previous meetings: 

 
A.  February 13, 2024, City Council workshop meeting.  
B.  February 13, 2024, City Council meeting.  
 

4. Consider appointments to the following Boards/Commissions:  
 
A. Building and Standards Commission – appoint Ralph Masters to replace Richard 

DeLeon as a regular member and appoint Eric Haugeberg to replace Johner 
Martin as a regular member. Appoint Brian Johnson as an alternate member. 
 

B. Library Board of Directors – appoint Keri Pridemore to replace Frances 
Fennessy. 

 
5. Consider an ordinance declaring unopposed candidates elected to office and 

canceling the May 4, 2024, General City Election.  
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 – Page 2  
 

  

6.   Consider a resolution authorizing the submission of a grant application to the 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program (AFG) – FEMA for a multi-force door 
training simulator.  

 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Holmes and a second by Councilmember Pearson, 
the Consent Agenda, including the following captioned ordinance and resolution, was 
unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-09 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
DECLARING UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES IN THE MAY 4, 2024, GENERAL CITY 
ELECTION ELECTED TO OFFICE; CANCELING THE GENERAL ELECTION; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

ORDENANZA NÚMERO 2024-09 
 
UNA ORDENANZA DEL AYUNTAMIENTO DE LA CIUDAD DE BELTON, TEXAS, 
DECLARANDO QUE CANDIDATOS SIN OPOSICIÓN EN LA ELECCIÓN GENERAL 
DE LA CIUDAD DEL MAYO 4, 2024, SEAN ELEGIDOS AL CARGO; CANCELANDO 
LA ELECCIÓN GENERAL; PROVEYENDO UNA CLAUSURA DE DIVISIBILIDAD; Y 
PROVEYENDO UNA FECHA DE VIGENCIA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-06-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE 
ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM (AFG) – FEMA FOR A 
MULTI-FORCE DOOR TRAINING SIMULATOR AND DESIGNATING AN 
AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
7.   Z-24-0-4 – Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from 

Agricultural to Planned Development – Commercial Highway on 7.51 acres 
located at 3401 S. IH 35 Service Road, located on the southwest intersection of 
Interstate 35 and Mesquite Road. (Audio 4:38) 
 
Planner Tina Moore presented this item.  
 
Public Hearing - The following people spoke against the zoning change: 
 
Rosemary Stampley, 579 Mesquite Road 
Michelle Ciccariello, 511 Mesquite Road 
James Norton, 785 Mesquite Road 
Nelda Deholloz, 306 Mesquite Lane 
Byron Scott, 488 Mesquite Road 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 – Page 3  
 

  

Michelle Scott, 488 Mesquite Road 
 
Councilmember Bucher made a motion to approve the rezoning with additional 
conditions of 8’ wooden fencing, landscaping buffer that is 6’ at the time of planting, 
no overnight truck parking, and Type B Asphalt on Mesquite Road. Councilmember 
Covington seconded the motion which failed upon a vote of 2-5 (Bucher and 
Covington in favor and Leigh, Pearson, Carpenter, Holmes and O’Banion against). 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holmes made a motion to disapprove the rezoning. Councilmember 
O’Banion seconded the motion which failed upon a vote of 3-4 (Holmes, O’Banion 
and Carpenter in favor and Bucher, Covington, Pearson and Leigh against). 
 
Councilmember Bucher made a motion to approve the rezoning with additional 
conditions of 8’ wooden fencing, landscaping buffer that is 6’ at the time of planting, 
Type B Asphalt on Mesquite Road, and reduce the number of 18-wheel truck 
parking spaces from 16 to 12. Councilmember Carpenter seconded the motion. The 
following captioned ordinance was approved upon a vote of 5-2 (Bucher, Covington, 
Carpenter, Pearson and Leigh in favor and Holmes and O’Banion against), with the 
following original conditions:  
 
• The use of this property shall conform to the Commercial Highway District in all 

respects. 
 
• The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 

Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 

 
o Site Development Standards; 
o Landscape Design Standards; and 
o Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation Standards 
 
In addition, these conditions shall also apply: 
 
o A wooden privacy fence, 8’ in height, shall be provided as a perimeter screen 

along the west property line; 
o A landscape buffer of 8’ in width shall be provided along the west property 

line and landscaping shall be a minimum 6’ in height at time of planting; 
o Type B asphalt shall be provided on Mesquite Road subject to approval by 

the City’s Director of Public Works; and 
o Truck parking spaces shall be limited to a maximum of 12. 

 
• The approval of a subdivision plat, site plan, and building plans are required 

before development can begin.  
 
• The improvements in the Development Agreement will be completed prior to the 

issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any building or business. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 – Page 4  
 

  

• The Development Agreement must be recorded with the plat. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL 
TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT – COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY FOR APPROXI-
MATELY 7.51 ACRES LOCATED AT 3405 S. IH 35 

 
8.   P-22-45 – Consider the final plat of Unity Four, comprising 7.51 acres, located 

at the southwest intersection of Interstate 35 Frontage Road and Mesquite 
Drive. (Audio 1:09:51) 
 
Planner Tina Moore presented this item. 
 
Councilmember Bucher made a motion to approve the final plat of Unity Four with 
the following additional conditions: 8’ wooden privacy fence, landscaping buffer that 
is 6’ at the time of planting, Type B asphalt on Mesquite Road, reduction of 18-wheel 
truck parking from 16 to 12 and requiring the recording of the development 
agreement with the plat. Councilmember Pearson seconded the motion. The final 
plat of Unity Four was approved upon a vote of 5-2 (Holmes and O’Banion 
dissenting), with the following conditions:  
 
• Approval of the Zoning Change from Agricultural to Planned Development – 

Commercial Highway and associated conditions.  
 

• Conditions in the City letter dated December 15, 2022. 
 

• Conditions included in the Development Agreement. 
 

Miscellaneous  
 
9. Receive a presentation on the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023. (Audio 1:16:14) 
 
Director of Finance Mike Rodgers and Kristy Davis of JRBT, the City’s audit firm, 
presented the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for FY2023. There was no 
action required by the Council. 
 

10. Receive a presentation and discuss the reallocation of unspent funding 
received from the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, a part 
of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, to certain projects. (Audio 1:30:22) 
 
Director of Finance Mike Rodgers presented this item. Following discussion, no 
action was required by the Council. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2024 – Page 5  
 

  

11.  Receive a presentation on the Belton Fire Department 2023 Annual Report. 
(Audio 1:53:58) 
 
Fire Chief Jon Fontenot presented this item. There was no action required by the 
Council. 
 

12. Receive a presentation on the Belton Police Department 2023 Annual Report 
and Racial Profiling Report. (Audio 2:05:23) 
 
Chief of Police Larry Berg presented this item. There was no action required by the 
Council. 
 

13. Receive a presentation and consider adoption of the 2024 Water and 
Wastewater Master Plans. (Audio 2:16:03) 
 
Director of Public Works Matt Bates and KPA Engineers Ginger Tolbert and Sam 
Blumenthal presented this item.  
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember O’Banion, and a second by Councilmember 
Mayor Pro Tem Holmes, the adoption of the 2024 Water and Wastewater Master 
Plans was unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0.  

 
Executive Session 
 
At 8:14 p.m., the Mayor announced the Council would go into Executive Session for 
Item 15 as Item 14 was no longer needed. 
 
14. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.071, Consultation with Attorney.   
 

15. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law, 
Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.072, Deliberation Regarding Real 
Property.  

 
The Mayor reopened the meeting at 8:34 p.m., and there being no further business, the 
meeting was adjourned. 
 
 

_____________________________  
David K. Leigh, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #5 
 
Consider a resolution appointing election officers for the May 4, 2024, Special Election. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  
 
Summary Information 
 
The City’s Special Election will be held on May 4, 2024, to decide on the proposition “for 
the legal sale of all alcoholic beverages including mixed beverages” in the City of 
Belton. In accordance with the Election Code, the City Council appoints election 
officers, and we are recommending the appointment of Shirley White to serve as 
Election Day Presiding Judge and Louise Oldham to serve as Election Day Alternate 
Presiding Judge. Additionally, the Election Day Presiding Judge will appoint two 
Election Clerks for Election Day.  
 
State law designates the City Secretary as the Early Voting Clerk in municipal elections, 
and deputies may be appointed to assist in conducting early voting, to include 
employees of the City. We are recommending the appointment of Shirley White, Louise 
Oldam, Sherry Hill, Michelle Fogle and Lindsay Weaver to serve as Deputy Early Voting 
Clerks for this election. 
 
State law also requires the City to appoint an Early Voting Ballot Board (EVBB) to 
qualify and process ballots by mail, late ballots and provisional ballots. We are 
recommending Elizabeth Harper be appointed as EVBB Presiding Judge and LaJuana 
West be appointed as the EVBB Alternate Presiding Judge. An EVBB Clerk will also be 
appointed by the EVBB Presiding Judge. 
 
Early voting will be conducted April 22nd to April 26th (Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. 
until 5:00 p.m.), with two 12-hour days on April 29th and 30th (7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m.) 
at City Hall. The City will conduct Election Day voting in the Evans Room at the Harris 
Community Center, with polls open from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount:  Approximately $5,000 in wages for election workers 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No 
 
Funding Source(s): General Fund, City Council Election Expenses 
   



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the resolution. 
 
Attachments 
Proposed resolution  



 
RESOLUTION NO.  2024-07-R 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
APPOINTING ELECTION OFFICERS FOR THE CITY’S MAY 4, 2024, SPECIAL ELECTION. 
 
  

 
WHEREAS, this City Council has ordered a Special Election to be held in the City of 

Belton, Texas, on May 4, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is hereby found and determined that it is necessary and appropriate to 

appoint officers to conduct said election; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1.  Findings. The statements contained in the preamble of this Resolution are 
true and correct and adopted as findings of fact and operative provisions hereof. 

 
Section 2.  Election Officers Appointed. The following named persons are hereby 

appointed to serve as officers for said election: 
 

(a) Deputy Early Voting Clerks:  
  
Shirley White 
Louise Oldham 
Sherry Hill 
Michelle Fogle, City of Belton, Texas 
Lindsay Weaver, City of Belton, Texas 

 
(b) Officers to serve on Election Day: 

 
Presiding Judge: Shirley White 
Alternate Presiding Judge: Louise Oldham 
 
The Election Day Presiding Judge shall appoint not less than two nor more than 
four qualified Clerks to serve and assist in holding said elections. 

 
(c) Early Voting Ballot Board: 

 
 Presiding Judge: Elizabeth Harper 
 Alternate Presiding Judge: LaJuana West 
 
 The EVBB Presiding Judge shall appoint a qualified Clerk to serve on the EVBB. 
 
 
 
 



PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this the 12th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
John R. Holmes, Sr., Mayor Pro Tem 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Consider a resolution nominating the City’s candidate for election to the Board of Directors 
of the Central Texas Water Supply Corporation. 
 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
Background 
 
Scott Hodde, Interim Director of Public Works, is currently serving as the City’s 
representative on the Central Texas Water Supply Corporation Board of Directors. Mr. 
Hodde desires to continue in this role representing the City on this board. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
None 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the appointment. 
 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 
Timeline 
Conflict of Interest Statement 



RESOLUTION 2024-08-R 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
NOMINATING A CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE CENTRAL TEXAS WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton is a Regular Member of the Central Texas Water Supply 
Corporation as a direct result of entering into a water sales and purchase contract with 
the Central Texas Water Supply Corporation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the By-Laws of the Central Texas Water Supply Corporation stipulate that, 
at the Annual Meeting of the members, each Regular Member shall be entitled to 
nominate an individual to serve on the Board of Directors of Central Texas Water Supply 
Corporation, provided that the nominee is not in violation of the Central Texas Water 
Supply Corporation Conflict of Interest Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton has determined that it would be in its best interest to have 
such a voting member on the Central Texas Water Supply Corporation Board of Directors 
and does desire to have such a Board Member elected at the April 23, 2024, meeting by 
the members of Central Texas Water Supply Corporation. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, that Scott Hodde be and is hereby nominated for election to the Board 
of Directors of Central Texas Water Supply Corporation at the April 23, 2024, meeting of 
the members of Central Texas Water Supply Corporation. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2024. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
            John R. Holmes, Sr., Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk                                                             



TIMELINE FOR EVENTS LEADING UP TO ANNUAL MEETING 
April 23, 2024 

 
 
 
120 DAYS PRIOR 

 
 
 
 
 
90 DAYS PRIOR 
January 23, 2024 

 
 
 

 
90 DAYS PRIOR 
January 23, 2024 

 
 
30 DAYS PRIOR 
March 23, 2024 

 
 
15 – 25 DAY PRIOR 
April 10, 2024 

 
 

10 – 1 DAYS PRIOR 
April 13, 2024 

 
DAY OF ANNUAL MEETING 
April 23, 2024 

President of the Board verifies that there are 
three (3) directors appointed to the 
standing Credentials Committee. The 
Secretary of the Board will be the Chairperson 
of the Credentials Committee. 

 
Voting procedure changes, as needed are 
submitted by the Credentials Committee as an 
agenda item for the board to consider at the 
next Monthly Meeting. 

 
Resolution forms and Conflict of Interest 
Policy are emailed to membership by the 
Corporation Office. 

 
Resolution forms are due in Corporation Office 
by membership. 

 
 
Membership and Board of Directors Annual 
Meeting packets are mailed by the Corporation 
Office. 

 
 
Credentials Committee meets to verify the 
Resolutions submitted by the membership. 

 
30 minutes prior to the Annual Meeting, 
Credentials Committee meets to resolve any 
issues pertaining to the resolutions submitted 
by the membership. 



CENTRAL TEXAS WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION 

CONFLICT-OF-INTEREST POLICY 
March 20, 2018 

PART 1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DEFINED: 

1. Members of the CTWSC Board of Directors shall be elected by a member entity of the 
corporation.  They shall be eligible to serve unless: 

 
 

A.  He or she is representing more than one regular member as a Director. 
 

B. He or she is a developer of property within the service area of the corporation. 
 

C. He or she is an employee of any developer of property within the service area of 
the corporation. 

 

D.  He or she is an employee of any director, manager, engineer, or attorney for the 
corporation. 

 

E. He or she is serving as a consultant, engineer, attorney, manager, or in any other 
professional capacity for the corporation or for a developer of property within 
the service area of the corporation. 

 

F. He or she is a party to a contract with the corporation, except a contract for the 
purchase of water/sewer services furnished by the corporation to the 
corporation’s members generally, or 

 

G. He or she is a part of a contract with any developer of property within the 
service area of the corporation, other than conveying real property within the 
service area of the corporation for the purpose of establishing a residence or 
establishing a commercial business within the service area of the corporation. 

 

H.  He or she is a member of the immediate family of any director of the corporation 
or of any other person serving in a managerial capacity, as attorney, accountant, 
or an engineer on behalf of the corporation or if he or she serves as a director or 
as an officer for any bank or financial institution retained as a depository for the 
funds of the corporation, or any bank or entity which holds any indebtedness of 
the corporation. 

 

 

Page 1         Revised 3.20.18 



 

            2. A Responsible Person is disqualified from employment by the corporation if he or she is 
a member of the immediate family of any director of the corporation or any other 
person employed by the corporation or managerial capacity on behalf of the 
corporation. 

3. Any Responsible Person of the corporation shall engage in any transaction as a 
representative or agent of the corporation with any business entity in which they, their 
immediate family, or any business partners have a direct or indirect financial interest 
that might conflict with the proper discharge of their duties or responsibilities. 

4. No Responsible Person of the corporation shall be entitled to any compensation for or in 
consideration of the execution of his duties as such officer of director, provided, 
however that the actual, reasonable expenses of any officer of director incurred on the 
business of the corporation may, with approval of the board of directors, be paid to 
them.  

5 No Responsible Person of the corporation shall: 

 A.  Solicit or accept or agree to accept a financial and/or material benefit, that might   
reasonably tend to influence his or her performance of duties for the corporation or 
that he or she knows or should know is offered with the intent to influence the officer’s 
or director’s performance of his or her duties. 

B. Accept employment or compensation that might reasonably induce him or her to    
                             disclose confidential information acquired in the performance of official duties. 
               C. Accept outside employment or compensation that might reasonably be expected to 

 create a substantial conflict between the officer’s and director’s private interest and                                                                                                                                 
duties of the corporation; or 

 D. Solicit or accept or agree a financial benefit from another person in exchange for having 
                             performed duties as an officer or director of the corporation in favor of the person. 
 
6. The board of directors may accept on behalf of the corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, 

or devise for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the corporation, provided, 
however, that the board of directors may reject any donation made upon a condition or 
restriction if in the discretion of the board of directors the acceptance of the donation as so 
conditioned or restricted will not be in the best interest of the corporation. 

 
7. The removal of any director of the corporation because of disqualification under this policy shall 

not affect the validity of directors during the time of service by that director, even though the 
director may have been acting under the disqualification at the time of such service. 

 
 
 Page 2 
 



8. If at any time any officer or director is required to vote in his or her capacity as a director on an 
issue which may create a conflict of interest, which may be deemed a conflict of interest by the 
board, or which may be interpreted by the members as a conflict of interest, the officer or 
director shall abstain from voting, as a matter of record, on that issue. 

 
9.  The policy provisions do not apply to contract for personal or professional services or for a utility 

service operator. 
 
PART II. DEFINITIONS: 
 
 A. A “Conflict of Interest” is any circumstance described in Part I of this Policy. 
 

B. A “Responsible Person” is any person serving as an officer, director, employee, or  
member of the Board of Directors of Central Texas Water Supply Corporation. 

 
C.  A “Family Member” is a spouse, domestic partner, sibling, parent, grandparent, or 

grandchild or a Responsible Person.  This includes step parents, step children, step 
siblings, and adoptive relationships. 

 
D.  A “Material Financial Interest” in an entity is a financial interest of any kind, which, in 

view of all of the circumstances, is substantial enough that it would, or reasonably 
could, affect a Responsible Person’s or Family Member’s judgement with respect to 
transactions to which the entity is a party.  This includes all forms of compensation. 

 
E.  A “developer” is any person who is an owner, shareholder, director, officer, partner or 

employee of a business entity engaged in the business of selling or leasing, or offering to 
sell or lease, or advertising for sale or lease, any lots in a subdivision. 

 
F. A “Contract or Transaction” is any agreement or relationship involving the sale or 

purchase of goods, services, or rights of any kind, the providing or receipt of a loan or 
grant, the establishment of any other type of pecuniary relationship, or review of a 
charitable organization by Central Texas Water Supply Corporation.  The making of a gift 
to Central Texas Water Supply Corporation is not a Contact or Transaction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Page 3 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
        

Date: March 12, 2024  
 Request: Street Use License Agreement 

Location: Laila Lane and Skyview Drive 
Skyview Subdivision Entrances 

Applicant: ARIT Investment, LLC 
 

 
Agenda Item #7 
     
Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Street Use License Agreement with ARIT 
Investment, LLC to authorize the construction of two subdivision entrance signs in the public 
right-of-way on Laila Lane and Skyview Drive.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Tina Moore, Planner 
 
Case Summary 
 
The developer of the Skyview Belton Addition has submitted an application for a street-use 
license to install two free-standing monument signs and landscaping in a median at the 
entrances of the subdivision on both Skyview Drive and Laila Drive. A street-use license 
agreement is necessary to ensure that the area is properly insured and maintained. Per the 
terms of the agreement, the owner agrees to:     
 

• Provide necessary insurance and add the City as an additional insured, meeting 
requirements of the Right-of-Way Management Ordinance (Ordinance 2017-40);  

• Provide ongoing maintenance for landscaping; and 
• Hold the City harmless in claims arising from the use of the property.  

 
Should the City decide to terminate this agreement, a 30-day notice to the developer or 
successor is required for the removal of the sign.  

 
The proposed signs are boulder size approximately 7-8’ wide and 5’ tall. The applicant has 
opted for a natural xeriscape landscaping. Section 38.22, Subdivision Entry Signs, of the 
Zoning Codes, requires entry signs to have a maximum face of 40 square feet and a maximum 
height of 6’. We are satisfied there will be no visibility obstructions resulting from the 
improvement in the street right of way. The applicant has complied with all requirements of the 
Sign Ordinance.  
 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the street use license agreement with ARIT Investment LLC.  
  
Attachments 
License Agreement 
Sign permit application, sign elevation, and locations 











To indicate their consent to the above the parties or their authorized representative or officers have executed this agreement. 
Licensee: '
. 0 D�e�M"-ARIT Inv stn nts, LLC 

Licensor: 
Sam A. Listi, City Manager City of Belton 

STATE OF TEXAS, Williamson County 
On this 21st day of February 2024, personally appeared before me David Beardsley, known by me to be the person whose name is subscribed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he/she executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed. , � //,(Signature of Notary Public) �� _ .f.11'f,.\_ TINA GRIFFIS 

. �. My Notary ID# 130450368 My Commission Expires: l l / '2.4 / 2] ;,_�>i:.�r:.ifl Expires November 24, 2027

STATE OF TEXAS, Bell County 
On this _____ day of _ ________ , 20 _, personally appeared before me ___________ _, known by me to be the person whose name is subscribed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he/she executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed. 
(Signature of Notary Public) ----- -------
My Commission Expires: _ _________ _ 

STREET USE LICENSE AGREEMENT I PAGE2 OF 2 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #8 
 
Consider authorizing a Construction Manager at Risk contract with RM Rodriguez 
Construction for the rehabilitation of the historic Mt. Zion United Methodist Church. 
 

Originating Department 
 
Administration – Jo-Ell Guzman, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator  
 
Background 
 
A Request for Proposals for Construction Manager-at-Risk Services for the Mt. Zion United 
Methodist Church Restoration and Rehabilitation Project was issued in January 2024. A 
mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference was held on January 31, 2024, and five companies 
were in attendance. The City received one proposal from RM Rodriguez Construction of 
Temple. The Evaluation Committee, consisting of City Manager Sam Listi, Grants and 
Special Projects Coordinator Jo-Ell Guzman, City Clerk Amy Casey, Director of Finance 
Mike Rodgers, Retired Contractor Jack Sims and Donna Carter and Zak Robinson of Carter 
Design Associates, met and determined that additional information regarding experience of 
the company with historic building renovation was needed. The City requested additional 
information, and the company provided a sufficient number of historic renovation project 
examples to allow the Evaluation Committee to recommend them for award. 
 
The CMAR will work with Carter Design Associates for the pre-construction and construction 
phases and meet the requirements to ensure the success of this project. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount:  $5,000 Pre-Construction Phase Services 
 
Construction Phase Services: 8.75% of total construction costs 
General Conditions costs, not to exceed 15%, estimated at $25,000 
 
A Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal will be presented to Council following the 
completion of design. 
 
Budgeted:  Yes No   Capital Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s):  ARPA Funds and Grants 
 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends authorizing a contract with RM Rodriguez Construction for Construction 
Manager at Risk services for the Mt. Zion United Method Church Restoration and 
Rehabilitation Project. 
 
Attachments 
RM Rodriguez Construction Proposal 





































































































City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #9 
 
Consider implementing recommendations of the City’s Beautification Committee regarding 
funding and associated elements for wall murals in Downtown Belton, including a $5,000 
cost share for the mural at Cochran, Blair and Potts. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
 
Background 
 
The recommendations of the Beautification Committee were presented to Council and 
endorsed on November 14, 2023. It was anticipated future actions would be needed to 
implement the recommendations. Several Façade Improvement Grants (FIGS) have been 
approved since that time, with budgeted funding for FY 2024 increased from $50,000 to 
$150,000. Also, the Council approved the first “Welcome to Belton sign” as a Leadership 
Belton project on N. TX HWY 317 near the City limit line, allocating $15,000 as seed money 
to facilitate fund raising. 
 
Another component which emerged with much excitement was the potential for the City to 
encourage wall murals in Downtown. The Beautification Committee recommended a series 
of elements to include: 
 

1. Sign Code Amendment to add Mural Signs; 
2. Development of a Mural Sign Grant Application for Council review and approval; 
3. Preparation of a Maintenance Agreement for mural sign maintenance by the City; 

and 
4. $50,000 in City funding was proposed to be added to the budget for mural cost 

participation. 
 
Item 1: 
The sign code amendment is drafted, and a public hearing is scheduled before the Planning 
and Zoning Commission on March 19, 2024, and City Council on April 9, 2024. 
 
Items 2, 3, & 4: 
These items are still in development, and we have received a request for the first mural 
which is underway, ahead of completing these other matters. Robert Potts seeks assistance 
in the amount of $5,000 toward the $15,000 mural at Cochran, Blair and Potts, located at 
the intersection of Penelope and Water Streets. The Mural Invoice and the Mural Design are 
attached. In this case, the City did not have advance review of the mural, and Mr. Potts is 
not anticipating seeking City maintenance of the mural. 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 2 of 2   
 

The Beautification Committee recommended a budget allocation of $50,000 and envisioned 
up to $10,000 in City participation per mural - $7,500 for mural cost share and $2,500 for 5 
years maintenance. Mr. Potts was allocated $20,000 in FIG grant funds towards the 
$174,925 Cochran, Blair and Potts building renovation project which included $2,000 in 
Mural Prep work. We recommend $5,000 in City funds be allocated toward the $15,000 
mural which, when combined with the $2,000 credit toward completed mural work, totals 
$7,000. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$5,000 in budgeted FIG funds are available. 
 
Recommendation: Recommend implementing recommendations of the City’s Beautifica-
tion Committee regarding funding and associated elements for wall murals in Downtown 
Belton, including $5,000 cost share for Cochran, Blair and Potts. 
 
Attachments 
November 14, 2023 Council Agenda Item 
November 14, 2023 Council Meeting Minutes (see Item #10) 
Applicant’s Request 
Mural Invoice 
Mural Design 



City Council Agenda Item 
November 14, 2023 

Page 1 of 3

PRIOR MEETING

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
Agenda Item #10 

Receive a report and consider implementing the recommendations of the City’s 
Beautification Committee. 

Originating Department 

City Council – Wayne Carpenter, Councilmember 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 

Summary Information 

Former Mayor Carpenter initiated the concept of a Beautification Committee to develop 
recommendations to complement the extensive development occurring in Downtown Belton, 
and the anticipated activity in the adjacent Imagine Belton areas. 

History of Discussion in Belton 

The Beautification Committee was established by Council at its February 14, 2023, meeting 
and met five times between March and September 2023. The wide-ranging Committee 
spent early meetings exploring a variety of potential beautification elements, including: 

• Themed artwork such as St. Paul Peanuts characters, Temple trains, Hutto hippos;
• Historic elements;
• Chamber’s Parade of Stars;
• Texas Longhorns;
• Other sculptures;
• Rodeo themes; and
• Murals on buildings.

Beyond these elements of community identity and interest, the Committee discussed 
enhanced attractiveness of highway and street corridors; streetscapes; signage and lighting; 
building maintenance and code enforcement; and landscape planters.  

One of the catalysts for the investigation was the excitement generated by the Imagine 
Belton vision developed and presented by BEDC last year. There was a strong sense 
among decisionmakers that identifying concepts, development standards, and financial 
incentives for a more attractive community could induce a positive response as 
development or redevelopment occurs. The Beautification Committee went to work and 
developed several recommendations for Council and community considerations. The 
recommendations are summarized below.  



City Council Agenda Item 
November 14, 2023 

Page 2 of 3   
 

1. Murals on buildings represent the Committee’s first priority. 
o Simple, low cost, impactful, changeable 
o Mural policies important, especially if publicly funded 
o Soliciting interest among business owners important 
o See attached 
 

2. “Landscaping” elements emerged as a second, complementary priority. 
o Simple, modest cost, quick and visible impact 
o Landscape planters installed by Parks Department during Committee work 
o Eldred’s Nursery engaged or possible maintenance agreement 
o Bench or built seating under review for pedestrians  
o See attached 
 

3. “Welcome to Belton” entry signage also a priority. 
 

4. “Themed” elements (stars, longhorns, sculptures, history, rodeo) represent a 
low priority. 
o Limited interest, higher cost, limited impact, permanence  

 
Fiscal Impact in FY 2024 
 

1. Landscaping elements 
a. Four planters Downtown   $2,000 (funded by Parks) 
b. Landscaping     $500 (nominal expense) 
c. Eldred’s agreement    $8,000 (annual contract) 

(Downtown landscape maintenance) $8,500 total 
 

2. FIG expansion ($50,000-$150,000)  $0 (Increase to $150,000 budgeted) 
o Amend policies to extend Façade Improvement Grants to Imagine Belton areas 

(annual budget consideration of up to six (6) $25,000 grants) 
 

3. Building structure grants   $100,000 (BEDC or City annual budget    
                 consideration for four (4) $25,000 grants) 

 
4. Public infrastructure grants   $100,000 (TIRZ, BEDC, COB and/or 

                 Utilities, annual budget consideration) 
 

5. Corporate Foundation Grants   $0 (Staff support from City Manager’s Office) 
 

6. Wall mural painting/wall lease  $50,000 (COB funding for five (5) murals,  
        annual budget consideration) 

 
7. Welcome to Belton signage   $15,000 (COB funding for 1 sign;  

     seek partnership in future years  
 
Additional FY’24 Year 1 funding estimate $273,500 



City Council Agenda Item 
November 14, 2023 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of Beautification Committee’s recommendations including:  
 
1. Focus on murals, landscaping, and welcome signage as key beautification elements; 
2. Amend sign code and refine policies to achieve effective implementation; 
3. Establish annual maintenance agreement with Eldred’s for current planters and 

expanded Downtown maintenance; 
4. Evaluate adding seating near planters while preserving sidewalk passage; 
5. Amend FIG criteria to allow murals and expand boundary to Imagine Belton ; 
6. Address Building Structure Grants with BEDC, Council ; 
7. Establish parameters for Public Infrastructure Grants and secure funding; 
8. Identify opportunities for Corporate Foundation Grants and provide staff support; 
9. Coordinate mural program following funding allocation; and 
10. Prioritize location(s) for “Welcome to Belton” signage, fund initial sign and seek 

partnership for others.  
 
Attachments 
Beautification Committee Membership 
Final Beautification Committee Meeting Summary 
Exhibit 1 – Proposal Mural Sign Ordinance 
Exhibit 2 – Proposed mural policies  
Exhibit 3 – Mural policy amendment suggested by Chamber 
Exhibit 4 – Proposed landscape components 
Exhibit 5 – Proposed funding recommendations 
Exhibit 6 – Proposed wall mural/lease and funding by City 
Exhibit 7 – Proposed “Welcome to Belton” signage 





Robert Potts, President
Cochran, Blair and Potts

221 E. Central Avenue
Belton, Texas 76513

March 6.2024

Mayor David K. Leigh and Councilmembers
City of Belton
333 Water Street
Beltor-r. Texas 76513

Dear Mayor Leigh and Councilmembers:

Cochran. Blair and Potts requests to apply fbr a $5.000 grant to be used to help fund the cost of a
"BELTON" mural underr.l,ay on our building at the corner of Penelope and Water Street.

It is my understanding that there is a mural grant program in development fbr Belton businesses

to help fund the cost of murals fbr Downtown Beautification. Unfortunately, due to timing
constraints, we could not l-rold the artist off until the grant program was finalized.

We are so excited fbr this mural. and believe it represents Belton by merging the past and present

into the future.

It is built on cement board and will be sealed to help protect it fion'r the weather for the long tern-r.

Sincerely.

Robert Potts
Presider-rt

Cochran. Blair and Potts





Date: 2/13/24


Attn.: Robert  Potts 

Client: Cochran, Blair & Potts


Project Title: Belton Mural


Location: 221 E. Central Ave. Belton, TX 76513


Email: robert.potts@cbandpotts.com 

DESCRIPTION SIZE SVCS. | ETC XTRA SVCS. DEP DOR

Inc. Artwork w/ 
orig. RD Art, 
max. 3 Rev. 
Des. And Prod. 
Belton-
Themed EXT. 
CRN. Mural 

Apprx. 

44’ W


8’ H 

352 sq.ft.


RD Des., 
MATL, Paints, 
Equip., and 
Labor AIl Inc. 
ETC >Approx. 
12 Days 

NA OPTN 1 > 
$15,000 1/2 
$7,500 DOR > 
OB of $7,500 
DOR upon FP


1> 
$15,000


DEP> $	 7,500

GT 15,000.00

All Deposits are Non-Refundable. Thank You For Your Business! 

Michael McPheeters 

michaelmcpheeters.com 

310.740.1240 

michaeljmcpheeters@gmail.com 

INVOICE #282 

mailto:robert.potts@cbandpotts.com


City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #10 
     
Consider a financing structure for the future debt issuance by Bell County Water Control and 
Improvement District #1 for water plant expansion and capital maintenance enhancements. 
  
Originating Department 
 
Finance Department – Mike Rodgers, Director of Finance  
 
Summary Information 
 
The Council has toured the plant and received presentations on needed capital improvements 
to achieve expanded water treatment and important capital maintenance items. City Staff, 
along with KPA Engineers, met on several occasions to formulate a recommendation for City 
Council consideration. On February 13, 2024, City Council approved a commitment on 
additional treated water capacity, in the amount of 4MGD, as well as Belton’s share of capital 
maintenance costs, for the proposed Bell County Water Control Improvement District #1 plant 
expansion, in the amount of $27,380,000. A contract amendment between the District and 
Belton will be presented to the Council once prepared. 
 
On March 1, 2024, the City Manager and Director of Finance met with the District’s Financial 
Advisor, Garry Kimball, to discuss the bonds to be issued by the District. Mr. Kimball said 
each participant will be able to customize the debt structure for its share of the costs. The 
individual structures will then be combined into one District offering. The debt issued by the 
District will also have a three-year call provision, so “excess” debt from contingencies, if any, 
can be used to pay down debt after three years. The BCWCID Board of Directors may approve 
a parameters resolution on March 27, 2024. The bonds are expected to close on May 23, 
2024. The anticipated interest rate on bonds priced in April range from 4.50%-5.25% instead 
of 5.85% as originally discussed. 
 
The District has provided debt schedules for different financing structures that delay the first 
principal payment. While delaying the principal payment lowers the required debt service in 
the early years, the total cost increases due to higher interest payments. An analysis of each 
option is provided below. 
 

1) 25-year level debt issued at 5.25% instead of 5.85% (original estimate) 
The original debt service schedule provided by Garry Kimball conservatively assumed 
an interest rate of 5.85%. Since that time, the market for tax-exempt debt has 
improved. With pricing only a month away, market rates are closer to 4.5%. A new debt 
service schedule has been created based upon a rate of 5.25%. Average annual debt 
service falls from $2,046,795 to $1,925,462. Total principal and interest to be paid 
decreases from $53,216,690 at 5.85% to $50,062,032 at 5.25%. 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 2 of 2   
 

25-year debt issued at 5.30% with first principal payment in 2027 
Delaying the first principal payment until 2027 lowers the first three years of debt 
service by $1,020,415. The total paid over the life of the bonds rises to $51,190,229, 
an increase of $1,128,197 over the level debt. Average annual debt service totals 
$1,968,854. 
 

2) 25-year debt issued at 5.35% with first principal payment in 2030 
Delaying the first principal payment until 2030 lowers the first six years of debt service 
by $2,493,466, backloading payments into the later years. The total paid over the life 
of the bonds rises to $52,815,722 compared to $50,062,032 for the level debt. Average 
annual debt service totals $2,031,373 with a large jump in 2030 from $1,464,012 to 
$2,228,013. 
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The structure approved by City Council will be incorporated into the utility rate study that is 
near completion. An example of the effect upon the rate study rates is included in the 
presentation. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Management recommends approval of the 25-year level debt structure, the first alternative 
proposed, for the future debt issuance by Bell County Water Control and Improvement District 
#1 for water plant expansion and capital maintenance enhancements. 
 
Attachments 
Debt service schedules for each scenario 
Presentation 
 



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25 Year; Level)

Debt Service Schedule Part 1 of 3

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

05/23/2024 - - - - -
01/10/2025 - - 906,226.56 906,226.56 -
04/30/2025 - - - - 906,226.56
07/10/2025 545,000.00 5.250% 718,593.75 1,263,593.75 -
01/10/2026 - - 704,287.50 704,287.50 -
04/30/2026 - - - - 1,967,881.25
07/10/2026 570,000.00 5.250% 704,287.50 1,274,287.50 -
01/10/2027 - - 689,325.00 689,325.00 -
04/30/2027 - - - - 1,963,612.50
07/10/2027 605,000.00 5.250% 689,325.00 1,294,325.00 -
01/10/2028 - - 673,443.75 673,443.75 -
04/30/2028 - - - - 1,967,768.75
07/10/2028 635,000.00 5.250% 673,443.75 1,308,443.75 -
01/10/2029 - - 656,775.00 656,775.00 -
04/30/2029 - - - - 1,965,218.75
07/10/2029 670,000.00 5.250% 656,775.00 1,326,775.00 -
01/10/2030 - - 639,187.50 639,187.50 -
04/30/2030 - - - - 1,965,962.50
07/10/2030 705,000.00 5.250% 639,187.50 1,344,187.50 -
01/10/2031 - - 620,681.25 620,681.25 -
04/30/2031 - - - - 1,964,868.75
07/10/2031 745,000.00 5.250% 620,681.25 1,365,681.25 -
01/10/2032 - - 601,125.00 601,125.00 -
04/30/2032 - - - - 1,966,806.25
07/10/2032 785,000.00 5.250% 601,125.00 1,386,125.00 -
01/10/2033 - - 580,518.75 580,518.75 -
04/30/2033 - - - - 1,966,643.75
07/10/2033 825,000.00 5.250% 580,518.75 1,405,518.75 -
01/10/2034 - - 558,862.50 558,862.50 -
04/30/2034 - - - - 1,964,381.25
07/10/2034 870,000.00 5.250% 558,862.50 1,428,862.50 -
01/10/2035 - - 536,025.00 536,025.00 -
04/30/2035 - - - - 1,964,887.50
07/10/2035 920,000.00 5.250% 536,025.00 1,456,025.00 -
01/10/2036 - - 511,875.00 511,875.00 -
04/30/2036 - - - - 1,967,900.00
07/10/2036 970,000.00 5.250% 511,875.00 1,481,875.00 -
01/10/2037 - - 486,412.50 486,412.50 -
04/30/2037 - - - - 1,968,287.50
07/10/2037 1,020,000.00 5.250% 486,412.50 1,506,412.50 -
01/10/2038 - - 459,637.50 459,637.50 -

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:36 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 1



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25 Year; Level)

Debt Service Schedule Part 2 of 3

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

04/30/2038 - - - - 1,966,050.00
07/10/2038 1,075,000.00 5.250% 459,637.50 1,534,637.50 -
01/10/2039 - - 431,418.75 431,418.75 -
04/30/2039 - - - - 1,966,056.25
07/10/2039 1,135,000.00 5.250% 431,418.75 1,566,418.75 -
01/10/2040 - - 401,625.00 401,625.00 -
04/30/2040 - - - - 1,968,043.75
07/10/2040 1,195,000.00 5.250% 401,625.00 1,596,625.00 -
01/10/2041 - - 370,256.25 370,256.25 -
04/30/2041 - - - - 1,966,881.25
07/10/2041 1,260,000.00 5.250% 370,256.25 1,630,256.25 -
01/10/2042 - - 337,181.25 337,181.25 -
04/30/2042 - - - - 1,967,437.50
07/10/2042 1,325,000.00 5.250% 337,181.25 1,662,181.25 -
01/10/2043 - - 302,400.00 302,400.00 -
04/30/2043 - - - - 1,964,581.25
07/10/2043 1,400,000.00 5.250% 302,400.00 1,702,400.00 -
01/10/2044 - - 265,650.00 265,650.00 -
04/30/2044 - - - - 1,968,050.00
07/10/2044 1,475,000.00 5.250% 265,650.00 1,740,650.00 -
01/10/2045 - - 226,931.25 226,931.25 -
04/30/2045 - - - - 1,967,581.25
07/10/2045 1,555,000.00 5.250% 226,931.25 1,781,931.25 -
01/10/2046 - - 186,112.50 186,112.50 -
04/30/2046 - - - - 1,968,043.75
07/10/2046 1,635,000.00 5.250% 186,112.50 1,821,112.50 -
01/10/2047 - - 143,193.75 143,193.75 -
04/30/2047 - - - - 1,964,306.25
07/10/2047 1,725,000.00 5.250% 143,193.75 1,868,193.75 -
01/10/2048 - - 97,912.50 97,912.50 -
04/30/2048 - - - - 1,966,106.25
07/10/2048 1,815,000.00 5.250% 97,912.50 1,912,912.50 -
01/10/2049 - - 50,268.75 50,268.75 -
04/30/2049 - - - - 1,963,181.25
07/10/2049 1,915,000.00 5.250% 50,268.75 1,965,268.75 -
04/30/2050 - - - - 1,965,268.75

Total $27,375,000.00 - $22,687,032.81 $50,062,032.81 -

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:36 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 2



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25 Year; Level)

Debt Service Schedule Part 3 of 3

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $432,133.96
Average Life 15.786 Years
Average Coupon 5.2500000%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 5.2943439%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 5.3188382%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 5.2003574%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 5.5606075%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 5.2500000%
Weighted Average Maturity 15.786 Years

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:36 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 3



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25Yr; 2027 1st Principal)

Debt Service Schedule Part 1 of 3

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

05/23/2024 - - - - -
01/10/2025 - - 915,024.39 915,024.39 -
04/30/2025 - - - - 915,024.39
07/10/2025 - - 725,570.00 725,570.00 -
01/10/2026 - - 725,570.00 725,570.00 -
04/30/2026 - - - - 1,451,140.00
07/10/2026 - - 725,570.00 725,570.00 -
01/10/2027 - - 725,570.00 725,570.00 -
04/30/2027 - - - - 1,451,140.00
07/10/2027 625,000.00 5.300% 725,570.00 1,350,570.00 -
01/10/2028 - - 709,007.50 709,007.50 -
04/30/2028 - - - - 2,059,577.50
07/10/2028 660,000.00 5.300% 709,007.50 1,369,007.50 -
01/10/2029 - - 691,517.50 691,517.50 -
04/30/2029 - - - - 2,060,525.00
07/10/2029 695,000.00 5.300% 691,517.50 1,386,517.50 -
01/10/2030 - - 673,100.00 673,100.00 -
04/30/2030 - - - - 2,059,617.50
07/10/2030 735,000.00 5.300% 673,100.00 1,408,100.00 -
01/10/2031 - - 653,622.50 653,622.50 -
04/30/2031 - - - - 2,061,722.50
07/10/2031 770,000.00 5.300% 653,622.50 1,423,622.50 -
01/10/2032 - - 633,217.50 633,217.50 -
04/30/2032 - - - - 2,056,840.00
07/10/2032 815,000.00 5.300% 633,217.50 1,448,217.50 -
01/10/2033 - - 611,620.00 611,620.00 -
04/30/2033 - - - - 2,059,837.50
07/10/2033 860,000.00 5.300% 611,620.00 1,471,620.00 -
01/10/2034 - - 588,830.00 588,830.00 -
04/30/2034 - - - - 2,060,450.00
07/10/2034 905,000.00 5.300% 588,830.00 1,493,830.00 -
01/10/2035 - - 564,847.50 564,847.50 -
04/30/2035 - - - - 2,058,677.50
07/10/2035 955,000.00 5.300% 564,847.50 1,519,847.50 -
01/10/2036 - - 539,540.00 539,540.00 -
04/30/2036 - - - - 2,059,387.50
07/10/2036 1,005,000.00 5.300% 539,540.00 1,544,540.00 -
01/10/2037 - - 512,907.50 512,907.50 -
04/30/2037 - - - - 2,057,447.50
07/10/2037 1,060,000.00 5.300% 512,907.50 1,572,907.50 -
01/10/2038 - - 484,817.50 484,817.50 -

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:40 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 1



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25Yr; 2027 1st Principal)

Debt Service Schedule Part 2 of 3

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

04/30/2038 - - - - 2,057,725.00
07/10/2038 1,120,000.00 5.300% 484,817.50 1,604,817.50 -
01/10/2039 - - 455,137.50 455,137.50 -
04/30/2039 - - - - 2,059,955.00
07/10/2039 1,180,000.00 5.300% 455,137.50 1,635,137.50 -
01/10/2040 - - 423,867.50 423,867.50 -
04/30/2040 - - - - 2,059,005.00
07/10/2040 1,245,000.00 5.300% 423,867.50 1,668,867.50 -
01/10/2041 - - 390,875.00 390,875.00 -
04/30/2041 - - - - 2,059,742.50
07/10/2041 1,315,000.00 5.300% 390,875.00 1,705,875.00 -
01/10/2042 - - 356,027.50 356,027.50 -
04/30/2042 - - - - 2,061,902.50
07/10/2042 1,385,000.00 5.300% 356,027.50 1,741,027.50 -
01/10/2043 - - 319,325.00 319,325.00 -
04/30/2043 - - - - 2,060,352.50
07/10/2043 1,460,000.00 5.300% 319,325.00 1,779,325.00 -
01/10/2044 - - 280,635.00 280,635.00 -
04/30/2044 - - - - 2,059,960.00
07/10/2044 1,540,000.00 5.300% 280,635.00 1,820,635.00 -
01/10/2045 - - 239,825.00 239,825.00 -
04/30/2045 - - - - 2,060,460.00
07/10/2045 1,625,000.00 5.300% 239,825.00 1,864,825.00 -
01/10/2046 - - 196,762.50 196,762.50 -
04/30/2046 - - - - 2,061,587.50
07/10/2046 1,710,000.00 5.300% 196,762.50 1,906,762.50 -
01/10/2047 - - 151,447.50 151,447.50 -
04/30/2047 - - - - 2,058,210.00
07/10/2047 1,805,000.00 5.300% 151,447.50 1,956,447.50 -
01/10/2048 - - 103,615.00 103,615.00 -
04/30/2048 - - - - 2,060,062.50
07/10/2048 1,905,000.00 5.300% 103,615.00 2,008,615.00 -
01/10/2049 - - 53,132.50 53,132.50 -
04/30/2049 - - - - 2,061,747.50
07/10/2049 2,005,000.00 5.300% 53,132.50 2,058,132.50 -
04/30/2050 - - - - 2,058,132.50

Total $27,380,000.00 - $23,810,229.39 $51,190,229.39 -

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:40 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 2



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25Yr; 2027 1st Principal)

Debt Service Schedule Part 3 of 3

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $449,249.61
Average Life 16.408 Years
Average Coupon 5.3000000%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 5.3426623%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 5.3666119%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 5.2130734%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 5.6014996%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 5.3000000%
Weighted Average Maturity 16.408 Years

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:40 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 3



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25Yr; 2030 1st Principal)

Debt Service Schedule Part 1 of 3

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

05/23/2024 - - - - -
01/10/2025 - - 923,141.22 923,141.22 -
04/30/2025 - - - - 923,141.22
07/10/2025 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
01/10/2026 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
04/30/2026 - - - - 1,464,012.50
07/10/2026 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
01/10/2027 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
04/30/2027 - - - - 1,464,012.50
07/10/2027 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
01/10/2028 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
04/30/2028 - - - - 1,464,012.50
07/10/2028 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
01/10/2029 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
04/30/2029 - - - - 1,464,012.50
07/10/2029 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
01/10/2030 - - 732,006.25 732,006.25 -
04/30/2030 - - - - 1,464,012.50
07/10/2030 785,000.00 5.350% 732,006.25 1,517,006.25 -
01/10/2031 - - 711,007.50 711,007.50 -
04/30/2031 - - - - 2,228,013.75
07/10/2031 830,000.00 5.350% 711,007.50 1,541,007.50 -
01/10/2032 - - 688,805.00 688,805.00 -
04/30/2032 - - - - 2,229,812.50
07/10/2032 875,000.00 5.350% 688,805.00 1,563,805.00 -
01/10/2033 - - 665,398.75 665,398.75 -
04/30/2033 - - - - 2,229,203.75
07/10/2033 920,000.00 5.350% 665,398.75 1,585,398.75 -
01/10/2034 - - 640,788.75 640,788.75 -
04/30/2034 - - - - 2,226,187.50
07/10/2034 975,000.00 5.350% 640,788.75 1,615,788.75 -
01/10/2035 - - 614,707.50 614,707.50 -
04/30/2035 - - - - 2,230,496.25
07/10/2035 1,025,000.00 5.350% 614,707.50 1,639,707.50 -
01/10/2036 - - 587,288.75 587,288.75 -
04/30/2036 - - - - 2,226,996.25
07/10/2036 1,085,000.00 5.350% 587,288.75 1,672,288.75 -
01/10/2037 - - 558,265.00 558,265.00 -
04/30/2037 - - - - 2,230,553.75
07/10/2037 1,145,000.00 5.350% 558,265.00 1,703,265.00 -
01/10/2038 - - 527,636.25 527,636.25 -

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:42 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 1



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25Yr; 2030 1st Principal)

Debt Service Schedule Part 2 of 3

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

04/30/2038 - - - - 2,230,901.25
07/10/2038 1,205,000.00 5.350% 527,636.25 1,732,636.25 -
01/10/2039 - - 495,402.50 495,402.50 -
04/30/2039 - - - - 2,228,038.75
07/10/2039 1,270,000.00 5.350% 495,402.50 1,765,402.50 -
01/10/2040 - - 461,430.00 461,430.00 -
04/30/2040 - - - - 2,226,832.50
07/10/2040 1,340,000.00 5.350% 461,430.00 1,801,430.00 -
01/10/2041 - - 425,585.00 425,585.00 -
04/30/2041 - - - - 2,227,015.00
07/10/2041 1,415,000.00 5.350% 425,585.00 1,840,585.00 -
01/10/2042 - - 387,733.75 387,733.75 -
04/30/2042 - - - - 2,228,318.75
07/10/2042 1,495,000.00 5.350% 387,733.75 1,882,733.75 -
01/10/2043 - - 347,742.50 347,742.50 -
04/30/2043 - - - - 2,230,476.25
07/10/2043 1,575,000.00 5.350% 347,742.50 1,922,742.50 -
01/10/2044 - - 305,611.25 305,611.25 -
04/30/2044 - - - - 2,228,353.75
07/10/2044 1,660,000.00 5.350% 305,611.25 1,965,611.25 -
01/10/2045 - - 261,206.25 261,206.25 -
04/30/2045 - - - - 2,226,817.50
07/10/2045 1,755,000.00 5.350% 261,206.25 2,016,206.25 -
01/10/2046 - - 214,260.00 214,260.00 -
04/30/2046 - - - - 2,230,466.25
07/10/2046 1,850,000.00 5.350% 214,260.00 2,064,260.00 -
01/10/2047 - - 164,772.50 164,772.50 -
04/30/2047 - - - - 2,229,032.50
07/10/2047 1,950,000.00 5.350% 164,772.50 2,114,772.50 -
01/10/2048 - - 112,610.00 112,610.00 -
04/30/2048 - - - - 2,227,382.50
07/10/2048 2,060,000.00 5.350% 112,610.00 2,172,610.00 -
01/10/2049 - - 57,505.00 57,505.00 -
04/30/2049 - - - - 2,230,115.00
07/10/2049 2,170,000.00 5.300% 57,505.00 2,227,505.00 -
04/30/2050 - - - - 2,227,505.00

Total $27,385,000.00 - $25,430,722.47 $52,815,722.47 -

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:42 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 2



 

Bell County Water Control & Improvement District No. 1 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 

Belton Portion 

Preliminary (25Yr; 2030 1st Principal)

Debt Service Schedule Part 3 of 3

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $475,850.26
Average Life 17.376 Years
Average Coupon 5.3442699%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 5.3845546%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 5.4085840%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 5.2257300%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 5.6341291%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 5.3442699%
Weighted Average Maturity 17.376 Years

2024 Wtr Sys Revs (2/21)  |  Belton  |  2/29/2024  |  2:42 PM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 3



FINANCING STRUCTURE FOR 
WATER PLANT EXPANSION AND 

CAPITAL MAINTENANCE
MARCH 12, 2024



BCWCID #1 WATER PLANT EXPANSION

• CITY COUNCIL IS COMMITTED TO 4 MILLION GALLONS PER DAY 
(MGD) OF ADDITIONAL TREATED WATER CAPACITY AND CAPITAL 
MAINTENANCE COSTS

• BELTON’S SHARE OF THE TOTAL COST IS $27,380,000

• REVENUE BONDS WILL BE ISSUED BY THE DISTRICT IN MAY 2024 



BCWCID #1REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2024
• BONDS WILL BE PRICED ON APRIL 23RD

• 25-YEAR MAXIMUM TERM

• FIRST CALL IN THREE YEARS

• PARTICIPANTS CAN CUSTOMIZE DEBT STRUCTURE

• ANTICIPATED INTEREST RATES FROM 5.25% TO 5.35%



FINANCING STRUCTURES TO CONSIDER

• 25-YEAR LEVEL DEBT 

• 25-YEAR DEBT WITH FIRST PRINCIPAL PAYMENT IN 2027

• 25-YEAR DEBT WITH FIRST PRINCIPAL PAYMENT IN 2030



25-YEAR LEVEL DEBT

• LEVEL PAYMENTS OVER THE LIFE OF THE BONDS

• AVERAGE ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE - $1,925,462

• MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE - $1,968,287 (2037)

• TOTAL PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST - $50,062,032



25-YEAR LEVEL DEBT



FIRST PRINCIPAL PAYMENT IN 2027

• LOWER DEBT SERVICE IN FIRST THREE YEARS

• AVERAGE ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE - $1,968,854

• MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE - $2,061,902 (2042)

• TOTAL PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST - $51,190,229



FIRST PRINCIPAL PAYMENT IN 2027



FIRST PRINCIPAL PAYMENT IN 2030

• LOWER DEBT SERVICE IN FIRST SIX YEARS

• AVERAGE ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE - $2,031,373

• MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE - $2,230,901 (2038)

• TOTAL PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST - $52,815,722



FIRST PRINCIPAL PAYMENT IN 2030



EFFECT ON RATE STUDY

Calculated Residential Rates 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Base Fees

Level Debt $5.51 $9.38 $13.99 $13.44 $12.82

1st Principal 2027 $5.51 $9.42 $11.80 $11.35 $13.18

1st Principal 2030 $5.51 $9.46 $11.86 $11.40 $10.85

Volumetric Rates

Level Debt $3.79 $5.46 $5.73 $5.80 $5.33

1st Principal 2027 $3.79 $5.46 $5.52 $5.59 $5.36

1st Principal 2030 $3.79 $5.47 $5.52 $5.60 $5.13



RECOMMENDATION

• MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDS THE 25-YEAR LEVEL DEBT SERVICE 
STRUCTURE DUE TO THE LOWER OUTLAY OVER THE LIFE OF THE 
BONDS



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #11 
     
Consider authorizing an extension to the BEDC development agreement with BCS Leasing, 
LLC and Texcrete Redi Mix through December 31, 2024. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Belton Economic Development Corporation – Cynthia Hernandez, Executive Director 
 
Summary Information 
 
The Belton Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) executed a Development 
Agreement with BCS Leasing, LLC and Texcrete Redi Mix for infrastructure improvements 
in December 2022. This agreement was to facilitate the expansion of Texcrete to Belton on 
a 6-acre tract, with an estimated $1.4 million capital investment and the creation of 20 jobs. 
Additionally, the company is proposing to subdivide the recently acquired 43-acre tract to 
facilitate the development of office warehouse, and other industrial uses available for sale or 
lease options.  
 
As per the agreement, BEDC has committed to investing $802,292 for infrastructure 
improvements from Taylors Valley Road to the development. BCS Leasing and Texcrete 
Redi mix have committed to installing 3-Phase power as well as water, wastewater, and a 
road to be dedicated to the City of Belton upon completion. The planned area for 
improvements was in the City of Temple’s ETJ and has been annexed into the City of Belton 
as a condition of the agreement. Additionally, the developer will grant an easement for a 
future hike and bike trail.  
 
The agreement called for the utlities and road to be completed in December 2023, but the 
company has requested an extension as they have experienced some delays due to the 
weather. It is likely that the utilities could be installed in by the end of April 2024, but again, 
the Spring weather could further delay the project. BEDC is recommending, and has 
approved a one-year extension, through the end of 2024, to allow adequate time to 
complete the infrastructure improvements and construction of the facility.  
 
The BEDC Board of Directors voted unanimously to approve the extension to the 
Development Agreement with BCS Leasing and Texcrete Redi Mix for the infrastructure 
improvements on Tuesday, March 5, 2024. BEDC will reimburse the developer up to 
$802,292 upon completion of the improvements in the Belton city limits, the installation of 
equipment and the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for Texcrete in Belton.  
 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 12, 2024 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
A reimbursement up to $802,292 for infrastructure improvements will be granted upon 
completion of the project as per the terms of the agreement.  
 
Amount: $802,292 
 
Budgeted:    Yes    No 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     
Capital Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s): BEDC FY 2024  
   
Recommendation 
 
The BEDC Board and staff recommend Belton City Council approval of a one-year 
extension to the infrastructure agreement between the Belton Economic Development 
Corporation, BCS Leasing, LLC and Texcrete Redi Mix. 
  
Attachments 
Development Agreement 
Exhibit 
 













Request for BEDC 
assistance up to this point

First phase of 
office/warehouse 
development

Concrete batch plant


	Agenda - 031224
	City Manager's Memo - 031224
	#3 - Proclamation - Theatre in Schools Month
	#4 - Minutes - 022724
	#5 - Staff Report - Appoint Election Officers
	#5 - Attachments 

	#6a - Staff Report - CTWSC Board Nominee
	#6 - Attachments

	#7 - Staff Report - License Agreement - ARIT - Skyview Belton Subdivision
	#7 - Attachments

	#8 - Staff Report - Mt. Zion UMC CMAR Services
	#8 - Attachments

	#10 - Staff Report - BCWCID Bond Financing Structure
	#10 - Attachments

	#11 - Staff Report - BEDC and Texcrete Development Agreement Extension



